
RILEY COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 

LAW BOARD MEETING 

City Commission Meeting Room 

1101 Poyntz Ave. 

Manhattan, KS 

January 17, 2023 12:00 p.m. 

Agenda 

I. ESTABLISH QUORUM- Chairperson Morse

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Director Peete

III. CONSENT AGENDA
[Items on the Consent Agenda are those of a routine and housekeeping nature or those items which have previously been reviewed by the 

Law Board.  A Law Board member may request an item be moved to the end of the General Agenda.] 

A. Approval of Minutes

Pages 3-8 1. December 19, 2022 Law Board Meeting

Pages 9-10 2. December 30, 2022 Special Law Board Meeting

Pages 11-23 B. Approve 2022 & 2023 Expenditures/Credits

Pages 24-27 C. 2022 Adjusted Financial Journal Entries- (Review)

Page 28 D. Juvenile Transport Reimbursement

Pages 29-32 E. RCPD Related County Expenditures- (Review)

Page 33 F. Riley County Jail Average Daily Inmate Population- (Review)

Page 34 G. Seizure Expenditure- (Review)

H. Monthly Crime Report- (Review)

1. Monthly

Pages 35-50 a) Monthly Crime Report

IV. GENERAL AGENDA

I. Swear in Law Board Members- Riley County Clerk Rich Vargo

J. Reorganization/Election of Officers- Secretary Wilkerson & Board- (Vote Required)

K. Selection of Hearing Officer- Chairperson & Board- (Vote Required)

L. Additions or Deletions

M. Public Comment

N. Fraternal Order of Police Lodge #17 Comments

O. Board Member Comments

P. Law Board Member Recognition- Director Peete & Assistant Director Moldrup

Q. Promotion Announcement Captain Scott Hajek - Director Peete & Assistant Director Moldrup

R. Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1786 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Award Corporal Jake

Wilson- Director Peete & Assistant Director Moldrup
Page 51 S. 2024 Budget Preparation Timeline- Director Peete- (Discussion)

T. Executive Session- (Vote Required)

1. Non-Elected Personnel Matters

2. Attorney Client Privilege

U. Adjournment



Riley County Law Enforcement Agency  (Law Board) Meetings are open to the public.  Agenda items may be viewed on 

the Riley County Police Department website at http://rileycountypolice.org/law-board. In order to comply with provisions 

of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Riley County Law Enforcement Agency will make reasonable efforts to 

accommodate the needs of persons with disabilities. Please contact Executive Offices Manager Nichole Glessner at (785) 

537-2112, ext. 2468, for assistance.  

The Meeting of the Riley County Law Enforcement Agency will be televised live on local Cox Cable Channel 3, on the 

City of Manhattan’s website at http://cityofmhk.com/tv, and also on Facebook at 

https://www.facebook.com/RileyCountyPD. A recording will be made available on the City’s website after the meeting.

http://rileycountypolice.org/law-board
http://cityofmhk.com/tv
https://www.facebook.com/RileyCountyPD


Riley County Law Enforcement Agency 
Law Board Meeting 

Tuesday, January 17, 2023 
12:00 p.m. 

City Commission Chambers 
1101 Poyntz Avenue 
Manhattan, Kansas 

Contact Director Peete with any questions 
(785) 537-2112 ext. 2468

1.



2.



  RILEY COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 

LAW BOARD MEETING 

City Commission Meeting Room 

1101 Poyntz Avenue 

Manhattan, KS 

December 19, 2022 12:00 p.m. 

Minutes 

Members Present: Chairperson Linda Morse  Vice Chairperson Robert Ward

Secretary Barry Wilkerson (Arrived at 12:02 p.m.) Member Kathryn Focke 

Member Patricia Hudgins (Arrived at 12:03 p.m.) Member John Ford 

Absent: Member BeEtta Stoney Captain Erin Freidline  

Staff Present:  Interim Director Kurt Moldrup Captain Brad Jager 

Captain Josh Kyle Captain Derek Woods  

Recorder: Executive Offices Manager Nichole Glessner, Riley County Police Department 

(RCPD or Department) 

I. Establish Quorum: By Chairperson Morse at 12:00 p.m.

II. Pledge of Allegiance: Interim Director Moldrup led the Riley County Law Enforcement Agency

(Law Board or Board) in the Pledge of Allegiance.

III. Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of Minutes

1. November 21, 2022 Law Board Meeting

2. December 12, 2022 Special Law Board Meeting

B. Approve 2022 Expenditures/Credits

C. Juvenile Transport Reimbursement

D. RCPD Related County Expenditures (Review)

E. Riley County Jail Average Daily Inmate Population- (Review)

F. Approval of Communications Center & Department Policies

1. COMMS Policy 5.2.3 – Orientation Handbook

2. Policy 35.1.9 – Personnel Early Intervention System

3. Policy 82.2.5 – Alternative Reporting Methods

G. Monthly Crime Report- (Review)

Interim Director Moldrup noted one correction to the November 21, 2022 Law Board Meeting minutes. 

Staff present at the meeting were listed under the incorrect heading and recorded as absent. The correction 

will be made to the minutes following Law Board approval. 

Member Ford moved to approve the November 21, 2022 Law Board Meeting minutes as amended and the 

December 12, 2022 Special Law Board Meeting minutes as presented. Member Focke seconded the 

3.



motion. Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with Focke, Ford, Morse, Ward, and 

Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The motion passed 5-0. 

Vice Chairperson Ward moved to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda. Secretary 

Wilkerson seconded the motion. Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with Focke, 

Ford, Hudgins, Morse, Ward, and Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The motion passed 

6-0.

IV. General Agenda:

H. Additions or Deletions: None.

I. Public Comment: None.

J. Fraternal Order of Police Lodge#17 Comments: Derek McKee, Treasurer, Fraternal Order

of Police (FOP) Lodge #17, provided an update on the Cops N’ Kids fundraiser held Saturday, December 

17, 2022 at Walmart Supercenter, Manhattan. Due to the generous donations from employees and the 

public, the FOP was able to take 75 children from Riley County and Pottawatomie County shopping for the 

holiday season. Representatives from the RCPD, Pottawatomie County Sheriff’s Office, Wamego Police 

Department, and St. Marys Police Department participated and were present at the event. 

K. Board Member Comments: Vice Chairperson Ward shared that this will be his last full

meeting as a member of the Law Board. He expressed what a privilege it has been to serve on the Board the 

past 4 years. He thoroughly enjoyed the relationships that were built with those on the Board (past and 

present), as well as former RCPD Director Dennis Butler and current Interim Director Kurt Moldrup. He 

added that RCPD is a very professional organization and its staff are nothing but the finest.  

Chairperson Morse echoed the sentiments expressed by Vice Chairperson Ward. She complimented the 

Law Board for how well they worked together over the past two years; each having brought different ideas 

and strengths to the Board. She expressed sincere appreciation to Kurt Moldrup for serving not only as 

Assistant Director but also Interim Director in 2022 as the Board worked to identify the next director of the 

RCPD. Morse shared her gratitude to members of RCPD Command Staff and employees for the support 

they provided the Board, and acknowledged the fine work of Captain Josh Kyle and Human Resources 

Manager Chris Robinson who will be retiring at the end of the year.  

Vice Chairperson Ward voiced that he would be remise if he did not recognize Attorney Michael Gillespie 

for the sage advice, institutional knowledge, and support he provided the Board over the years. 

Member Focke echoed the previously stated comments. She added that the first two years of her 

commission status coincided with the Law Board. Admittedly, it was a learning process and she gained 

quite a bit of knowledge from everyone. Focke shared that she decided not to apply for another two-year 

term on the Law Board so that she could continue to focus on her duties as a County Commissioner. She 

thanked everyone for their support and welcomed their assistance in the future.  

Member Ford announced that at least at the moment he will be continuing as a member of the Law Board. 

He briefly touched on the director selection process and great teamwork displayed by the Law Board when 

4.



faced with that challenge. He stated that he has learned a lot from those on the Board as well as RCPD staff 

and looks forward to working with everyone in the future. Ford said that he is optimistic going into 2023 

looks forward to collaborating with the Department to do what is needed to make the community safe.   

 

Chairperson Morse noted that the five-year contract with incoming Director Brian Peete has been signed. 

Director Peet’s official fist day with the RCPD will be December 30, 2022. A Special Law Board 

Meeting/Public Forum has been scheduled for Friday, December 30, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. at the Riley County 

District Court, 100 Courthouse Plaza, to swear-in Brian Peete as Director.  

 

L. Community Advisory Board Update: Brent Riffel, Chairperson, Community Advisory 

Board (CAB), briefed the Law Board on CAB activities to date.  He reported that since his last update to 

the Law Board, CAB discussions generally revolved around the RCPD director selection process. He 

explained that the CAB is a group of citizens formed by the director to relay concerns from the public to 

the RCPD. The group meets once a month. He stated that RCPD administration listens to the CAB and the 

two have a very respectful dialogue. It is their hope that the open dialogue continues under newly appointed 

Director Brian Peete. Riffel stated that he will be exiting the CAB as Chair effective December 31, 2022. 

Dennis Cook will be the new Chair and Teresa Parks has been selected to serve as Vice Chair for 2023.  

 

M. Community Advisory Board Member Recognition: On behalf of the Law Board, Riley 

County Police Department and Community Advisory Board (CAB), Interim Director Moldrup and CAB 

Vice Chairperson Cook presented Brent Riffel with a plaque in recognition of his dedication and service to 

the citizens of Riley County, Kansas and men and women of the RCPD. Riffel participated on the CAB 

from 2018-2022. He served as Vice Chair for 2021 and most recently concluded his service as the Chair in 

2022. He will be leaving the CAB at the end of the year.  

 

Interim Director Moldrup took a moment to thank Vice Chairperson Ward for serving as the liaison 

between the Law Board and CAB and taking time out of his schedule to attend the monthly meetings.  

 

N. RCLEA 2023 Meeting Resolution: Vice Chairperson Ward moved to approve Resolution 

23-01, Riley County Law Enforcement Agency (RCLEA) Meeting Schedule as presented. Secretary 

Wilkerson seconded the motion. Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with Focke, 

Ford, Hudgins, Morse, Ward, and Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The motion passed 

6-0.  

 

Chairperson Morse expressed her continued desire for the Law Board to hold two meetings in the county 

each year, alternating between locations.  

 

O. 2021 RCPD Audit: Jacob Kujath of James Gordon & Associates CPA, P.A., briefed the Law 

Board on the audit of 2021 financial statements of the RCPD, Independent Audit Report, and the 

Management Letter. Kujath reported that the auditors encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with 

management in performing and completing the audit, and they did not find any statute violations, budgetary 

or cash violations. Kujath explained that they did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that they 

consider to be material weaknesses. However, they did identify certain deficiencies in internal control that 

they consider to be significant deficiencies.  

 

5.



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 

of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 

the Departments financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  

 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

The auditors considered the following deficiencies in internal control to be significant deficiencies for the 

RCPD: 

 

The size of the Department’s accounting and administrative staff precludes certain internal controls that 

would be preferred if the office staff were large enough to provide optimum segregation of duties. They 

recommend the Law Board remain involved to provide oversight and independent review of functions.  

 

They also recommend the Department move to have one accounting software Department-wide, to 

assist in the recording and proper maintaining and closing of the accounting records.  

    

In 2021, then Director Dennis Butler reorganized and merged the trifurcated Human Resources activities. 

Interim Director Moldrup explained that as part of this reorganization, the Department converted the part-

time accountant position to a full-time payroll technician. The Department has begun the hiring process for 

the part-time accountant position that is required by statute to fill in for the Finance Manager when needed 

as well as provide some segregation of duties.   

 

P. GAAP Waiver: Secretary Wilkerson moved to approve the GAPP Waiver. Member Hudgins 

seconded the motion.  Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with Focke, Ford, 

Hudgins, Morse, Ward, and Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The motion passed 6-0.  

  

Q. End of Year Expenditures: Captain Kyle provided a presentation on the 2022 end-of-year 

funding proposals detailing large mandatory or discretionary expenditures that would only be possible with 

the use of unused personnel year-end funds. He stated that 87% of the RCPD budget is personnel. He 

explained that budgetarily, as it has been for several years, many of the Departments non-personnel 

accounts are underfunded and have not caught up with inflation. A good example of this is insurance as 

costs have increased substantially over the last three years. As a result, $700,000 of unused personnel funds 

goes to those underfunded accounts.  

 

Although the money has been authorized by the Law Board for expenditure by the RCPD through the 

director, staff feel it is important to come to the Law Board each year with the anticipated remaining funds 

and list of Department needs. Captain Kyle explained that RCPD staff met previously and discussed the 

Department’s needs, prioritized them, and assigned the funds accordingly. With the exception of the IT 

Infrastructure Reserve Fund and Medical Fund, they did not feel there were any special projects or major 

ticket items that have been waiting throughout the year to accomplish financially. However, Command 

Staff does recommend year-end funds be used to address the below Department priorities.   

 

 

 

6.



End of Year Proposal 

Unused Personnel Funds End of Year Items 

Anticipated Remaining Funds $347,000 

Priorities: 

1- IT Infrastructure Reserve Fund $35,065 

2- Medical Fund $60,000 

Total $95,065 

Difference  $251,935 

Carryover $251,935 (+/-15K) 

Captain Kyle explained that a couple years ago, with approval from the Law Board, the Department created 

an IT Infrastructure Reserve Fund. A few years prior to creating the fund, the RCPD encountered fairly 

serious financial difficulties because a number of servers had to be replaced simultaneously. This created 

an issue for the RCPD budgetarily. From that lesson, staff devised a five-year replacement plan that 

continues to move forward each year. Based on that plan, staff recognized that funds were needed in 

reserve to address various IT needs. In addition, a policy was created that only allows the Department to 

use the fund following Law Board approval. Captain Kyle noted that staff anticipate such a need in 2023 

and will be seeking approval from the Law Board to release funds somewhere in the neighborhood of 

$350,000. It is a self-restricted fund to be used for large ticket IT related items. Per policy, the fund cannot 

be more than 4% of the overall RCPD budget. The current balance of the fund is $887,738. The 

Department proposes adding $35,000 to bring the fund to 4% of the overall RCPD budget and prepare for 

next year when they anticipate significant expenditures to address replacement needs in the IT 

infrastructure.  

Captain Jager informed the Board that the Department will be looking at roughly $600,000 in total 

expenditures related to storage and servers in 2023.  

Captain Kyle addressed the RCPD Medical Fund. He said that the RCPD is self-insured and the broker 

recommends 1 million dollars in reserve to cover catastrophic losses within the health insurance program. 

Captain Kyle explained that approximately $100,000 is consumed annually. He recalled that in 2021, 

$313,000 was cut from the RCPD operational budget when asked by the Law Board to produce a 0% 

increase or flat budget. Since that time, the Department has managed to stay afloat, but it is close. 

Therefore, there is a need to closely monitor the fund to ensure the Department stays within the 

recommended 1-million-dollar mark. To do accomplish this, the Department recommends adding $60,000 

to the fund.  

Captain Kyle stated that RCPD appreciated the full Cost of Living Allowance (COLA) the Law Board 

authorized in addition to instituting the first half of the salary survey for 2023. Command Staff felt it was 

important throughout the year to be frugal and careful with what they spent money on with respect to what 

projects to move forward. Having done so has put the RCPD in the position to carryover approximately 

$250,000 to help the 2024 budget and offset the impact on taxpayers.  

Chairperson Morse appreciated the information provided to the Board. 

7.



 

Secretary Wilkerson thanked Captain Josh Kyle and Human Resources Manager Chris Robinson for their 

years of service to the RCPD and community. He wished both the very best upon their retirement. 

 

R. Executive Session: At 12:55 p.m. Secretary Wilkerson moved to recess into Executive 

Session until 1:05 p.m. to discuss non-elected personnel matters. Member Hudgins seconded the motion. 

Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with Focke, Ford, Hudgins, Morse, Ward, and 

Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The motion passed 6-0. 

 

At 1:06 p.m. the open meeting reconvened.  

 

S. Adjournment: Vice Chairperson Ward moved to adjourn the meeting. Secretary Wilkerson 

seconded the motion. Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with Focke, Ford, 

Hudgins, Morse, Ward, and Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The motion passed 6-0. 

The December 19, 2022 Law Board Meeting adjourned at 1:06 p.m. 

8.



  RILEY COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 

SPECIAL LAW BOARD MEETING 

Riley County District Court 

100 Courthouse Plaza 

Manhattan, KS 

December 30, 2022 9:00 a.m. 

Minutes 

 

 

Members Present: Chairperson Linda Morse   Vice Chairperson Robert Ward  

Secretary Barry Wilkerson   Member John Ford   

 Member Patricia Hudgins    

 

Absent:  Member Kathryn Focke   Member BeEtta Stoney  

           

Staff Present:  Interim Director Kurt Moldrup Captain Erin Freidline 

   Captain Scott Hajek   Captain Brad Jager 

 

Recorder: Executive Offices Manager Nichole Glessner, Riley County Police 

Department (RCPD or Department) 

  

 

I. Establish Quorum: By Chairperson Morse at 5:00 p.m. 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance: Chairperson Morse led the Riley County Law Enforcement 

Agency (Law Board or Board) in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

III. General Agenda: 

 

A. Swear in Newly Appointed Director 

1) Administration of Oath of Office by Judge Grant Bannister to Brian R. 

Peete: Judge Grant Bannister administered the Oath of Office to Brian R. Peete. 
 

2) Comments from Director Peete: Director Peete extended his appreciation to  

the Law Board for their trust and support in selecting him as the next Director of the 

RCPD. Peete acknowledge those who applied for the position and went through the 

hiring process, specifically Mark Mathies, Police Chief, Edwardsville Police 

Department, Kansas, and Josh Kyle, Captain, Riley County Police Department, 

Kansas. He applauded their long and dedicated service to their respective 

communities. 

 

Director Peete explained how humbled and pleased he is to work for such an 

attractive police department and thriving community that expects the best police 

service and highest caliber of professionalism. Peete vowed to never betray his 

integrity, his character or the trust of the public. Peete went on to state that he will 

always have the courage to hold himself accountable for his actions and not bring 

about shame to the Department or community. He will maintain a culture of 

selflessness and support, and push to keep everyone informed. He welcomed 

honesty and feedback from employees and the public as it will not only help guide 

9.



the RCPD in the right direction, but also help him grow personally and 

professionally. 

Director Peete thanked his mother, father, brother, and sister for their continued 

encouragement and support over the years. He also thanked his wife Natalie and 

daughter Gabriella who have helped to shape the man that he is today. 

B. Board Member Comments: Chairperson Morse and Secretary Wilkerson publicly

recognized Assistant Director Kurt Moldrup for his dedicated service as Interim Director during 

2022. 

C. Public Comment: None.

D. Adjournment: Vice Chairperson Ward moved to adjourn the meeting. Member

Ford seconded the motion. Chairperson Morse polled the Board and the motion passed with 

Ford, Hudgins, Morse, Ward, and Wilkerson voting in favor, and no one voting against. The 

motion passed 5-0. The December 30, 2022 Special Law Board Meeting adjourned at 9:19 a.m. 

10.



11.



12.



13.



14.



15.



16.



17.



18.



19.



20.



21.



22.



23.



24.



25.



26.



27.



28.



29.



30.



31.



32.



33.



34.



Monthly Report

Alyssa Ward, Crime Analyst
Criminal Intelligence Unit

Riley County Police Department

December 2022

35.



For the purposes of this report, data is extracted from the RMS using specific parameters.  
The results December differ slightly from other reports, such as Uniform Crime Reports 
(UCR), which measure the same variables but have slightly different search parameters , 
filters, and/or methods.  The following summarizes the most common attributes of this 
report that result in differences in reporting: 

 The data in the report reflects what was available at the time of extraction.  It is common for
numbers to change over time for various reasons.   Most commonly:

 Final data entry by records can be delayed due to the RTO status of a case.
 Clerical errors can be discovered, leading to corrections being made at a later date.

 Some categories in this report use a hierarchy rule.  This means that the offense with the highest
offense code number in an incident is the only offense counted.  Other reports December apply
the hierarchy rule to certain offenses.   For instance, UCR counts every occurrence of Part I violent
crimes in an incident (murder, rape, robbery, aggravated battery).  Each slide should notate the
method used.

 This report includes the property crime of arson which is excluded from other reporting.
 Crimes are extracted based on the date and time they were reported.  Other reports December

use the earliest and/or latest date and time the crime December have occurred.

Monthly and yearly projections are calculated using different methods.  Projections will have a higher 
degree of error when the time period used to project is small  (i.e. projecting an entire year based off 
the first two weeks of that year).

36.



Part I crime in December 2022 was 40.5% below the 5 year average. Compared to
December 2021 there was a 31.0% decrease.
In December, both property and violent crimes were below the 5 year average.
The Part I crime total for 2022 was 24.3% below the 5 year average of 1513.2
incidents.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

102 106 95 100 108 103 85 97 93 83 95 78
0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 132 99 161 97 94 127 119 192 137 148 166 121
2018 108 84 124 113 100 123 123 134 128 176 105 157
2019 154 77 124 142 123 114 138 167 148 143 116 137
2020 130 130 85 65 113 108 139 125 148 151 173 127
2021 121 76 120 111 104 106 114 149 127 123 157 113
2022 102 106 95 100 108 103 85 97 93 83 95 78

Includes Part 1 crimes that were the primary offense only. 

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 121 1593 1593
2018 157 1475 1475
2019 137 1583 1583
2020 127 1494 1494
2021 113 1421 1421
2022 78 1145

% Change -31.0% -19.4% -19.4%
1145Yearly Total:

37.



December 2022 was 35.1% below the 5 year average in Part I violent crime. The
violent crime total was 28.6% below the December 2021 total.
There were 9 aggravated assaults / batteries, 1 rape, 0 robberies, and 0 homicides
reported during December 2022.
Compared to the 5 year average, there was a 15.4% decrease in Part I violent crimes.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 17 198 198
2018 13 218 218
2019 22 217 217
2020 11 196 196
2021 14 199 199
2022 10 174

% Change -28.6% -12.6% -12.6%
174Yearly Total:

6 11 21 19 18 15 18 15 18 9 14 10
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 11 16 15 13 15 13 16 21 18 24 19 17
2018 15 19 17 12 14 20 28 17 18 27 18 13
2019 16 10 14 24 12 25 18 23 18 18 17 22
2020 18 21 14 3 15 20 19 20 18 21 16 11
2021 18 16 16 18 19 20 16 15 9 15 23 14
2022 6 11 21 19 18 15 18 15 18 9 14 10

Includes Part 1 violent crimes that were the primary offense only. 38.



There were no robberies reported in December 2022.
The robbery total for 2022 was 51.8% below the 5 year average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 1 23 23
2018 1 30 30
2019 4 26 26
2020 0 17 17
2021 1 18 18
2022 0 11

% Change -100.0% -38.9% -38.9%
11Yearly Total:

0 0 1 1 1 0 2 2 3 0 1 0
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 0 1 0 2 1 3 3 5 2 1 4 1
2018 1 4 1 1 4 2 4 2 2 5 3 1
2019 5 2 0 0 0 5 1 0 2 3 4 4
2020 2 1 1 1 2 3 2 1 0 4 0 0
2021 2 1 0 3 2 2 2 2 1 0 2 1
2022 0 0 1 1 1 0 2 2 3 0 1 0

39.



There were 6 aggravated batteries and 3 aggravated assault reported during the month
of December. This is 15.1% below the five year average.
Five of the incidents were domestic incidents.
As of 01/09/2023, there were arrests in 2 of the incidents.
The total for 2022 was 11.2% below the 5 year average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Includes aggravated assaults and battery crimes that were the primary offense only. 

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 10 116 116
2018 10 126 126
2019 16 155 155
2020 7 145 145
2021 10 145 145
2022 9 122

% Change -10.0% -15.9% -15.9%
122Yearly Total:

5 6 11 17 11 14 15 8 9 7 10 9
0

5

10

15

20

25

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 9 10 5 5 5 10 11 11 12 18 10 10
2018 9 8 10 8 6 15 17 9 11 11 12 10
2019 8 5 11 20 11 14 15 20 11 11 13 16
2020 15 16 12 1 11 13 14 14 16 16 10 7
2021 14 12 13 13 14 16 13 9 3 13 15 10
2022 5 6 11 17 11 14 15 8 9 7 10 9

40.



For December, Part I property crime was down 41.2% from the 5 year average.
Compared to December 2021, there was a 31.3% decrease.
The property crime for December 2022 included 10 structural burglaries, 7 larcenies
from motor vehicle, and 2 auto thefts. The rest of the incidents were larcenies (49 
incidents).
The Part I property crime total was down 25.7% from the 5 year average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 104 1395 1395
2018 144 1257 1257
2019 115 1366 1366
2020 116 1298 1298
2021 99 1222 1222
2022 68 971

% Change -31.3% -20.5% -20.5%
971Yearly Total:

96 95 74 81 90 88 67 82 75 74 81 68
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 121 83 146 84 79 114 103 171 119 124 147 104
2018 93 65 107 101 86 103 95 117 110 149 87 144
2019 138 67 110 118 111 89 120 144 130 125 99 115
2020 112 109 71 62 98 88 120 105 130 130 157 116
2021 103 60 104 93 85 86 98 134 118 108 134 99
2022 96 95 74 81 90 88 67 82 75 74 81 68

Includes Part 1 property crimes that were the primary offense only.  41.



Structural burglaries were 39.8% below the 5 year average for December.
There were 7 residential and 3 non-residential burglaries.
There were 2 burglaries in Ogden, 2 in North County, and 6 in Manhattan.
The end of year total for burglaries was 18.6% below the 5 year average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 11 244 244
2018 20 168 168
2019 16 171 171
2020 18 175 175
2021 18 157 157
2022 10 149

% Change -44.4% -5.1% -5.1%
149Yearly Total:

23 18 7 15 5 19 11 10 8 11 12 10
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 33 14 32 18 21 23 16 23 13 18 22 11
2018 13 10 12 12 17 11 15 16 18 11 13 20
2019 15 10 18 15 11 11 14 15 18 14 14 16
2020 18 25 14 12 7 6 11 13 15 22 14 18
2021 18 10 18 16 15 10 9 9 11 13 10 18
2022 23 18 7 15 5 19 11 10 8 11 12 10

42.



 December 2022 was 65.7% below the 5 year average.
 In 3 of the incidents the items were unsecured when they were taken.
 The vehicle burglary total for 2022 was 50.8% below the average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 18 289 289
2018 9 212 212
2019 28 228 228
2020 30 255 255
2021 17 255 255
2022 7 122

% Change -58.8% -52.2% -52.2%
122Yearly Total:

11 19 10 9 11 9 6 16 7 10 7 7
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 18 15 30 21 14 16 16 58 20 21 42 18
2018 26 14 13 13 7 22 5 28 33 34 8 9
2019 13 8 13 16 27 14 17 34 23 20 15 28
2020 18 13 7 9 20 29 1 16 28 32 52 30
2021 19 14 27 18 6 22 18 39 11 13 51 17
2022 11 19 10 9 11 9 6 16 7 10 7 7

43.



For December, motor vehicle thefts were down 73.0% from the 5 year average.
One of the vehicles has been recovered as of 1/9/2023.
The motor vehicle theft total was down 29.0% from the average for 2022.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 8 86 86
2018 6 86 86
2019 4 104 104
2020 13 96 96
2021 6 86 86
2022 2 65

% Change -66.7% -24.4% -24.4%
65Yearly Total:

10 1 8 7 4 4 5 6 12 3 3 2
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 8 5 5 5 6 8 8 16 5 7 5 8
2018 1 3 7 11 5 10 9 10 10 6 8 6
2019 8 4 10 9 7 8 7 9 12 15 11 4
2020 3 7 3 5 9 7 4 6 10 11 18 13
2021 7 3 7 3 4 4 11 10 11 7 13 6
2022 10 1 8 7 4 4 5 6 12 3 3 2

44.



The number of DUIs for December 2022 was 19.8% below the 5 year average.
The total number of DUIs for 2022 was 15.3% below the 5 year average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 15 266 266
2018 28 312 312
2019 19 285 285
2020 9 168 168
2021 10 191 191
2022 13 207

% Change +30.0% +8.4% +8.4%
207Yearly Total:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 26 27 22 29 25 18 21 18 29 16 20 15
2018 16 27 36 40 22 28 26 30 25 19 15 28
2019 24 8 32 38 26 24 20 32 26 20 16 19
2020 22 12 14 8 9 15 19 17 16 15 12 9
2021 10 17 26 25 20 14 22 8 12 21 6 10
2022 19 10 18 13 20 8 13 16 22 31 24 13

19 10 18 13 20 8 13 16 22 31 24 13
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

45.



The number of traffic accidents in December 2022 was 4.7% below the 5 year
average.
The total number of accidents in 2022 was 5.0% below the 5 year average.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 115 1387 1387
2018 111 1397 1397
2019 119 1436 1436
2020 105 1220 1220
2021 106 1314 1314
2022 106 1283

% Change 0.0% -2.4% -2.4%
1283Yearly Total:

96 104 103 105 127 102 76 115 104 110 135 106
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 79 87 101 140 127 97 89 112 124 159 157 115
2018 119 98 127 115 121 97 92 109 108 140 160 111
2019 119 116 103 116 131 99 94 121 117 158 143 119
2020 122 109 96 44 86 91 90 111 114 147 105 105
2021 71 84 103 100 107 91 91 122 127 156 156 106
2022 96 104 103 105 127 102 76 115 104 110 135 106

46.



The number of preventable traffic accidents in December 2022 was 17.1% below
the 5 year average.
The preventable accident total was 4.6% below the 5 year average.
Number may change as data entry corrections continue.

All Data As Of: 12/31/22 11:59 PM

Dec Year to Date Yearly Total
2017 76 991 991
2018 70 944 944
2019 75 945 945
2020 66 854 854
2021 87 965 965
2022 62 897

% Change -28.7% -7.0% -7.0%
897Yearly Total:

65 67 68 77 87 67 65 94 77 85 83 62
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022

5YR Max

5YR Avg

5YR Min

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2017 53 67 70 98 92 73 68 96 104 104 90 76
2018 71 63 93 75 94 71 71 79 93 82 82 70
2019 60 51 66 89 84 77 74 93 102 98 76 75
2020 73 81 60 26 50 71 69 91 89 105 73 66
2021 49 54 67 71 76 67 75 106 105 109 99 87
2022 65 67 68 77 87 67 65 94 77 85 83 62

47.



To reduce crime and improve the quality of life for the citizens we serve
48.



49.



50.



51.



52.


	Monthly_Presentation_Public_202212.pdf
	Monthly Report
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14




